
 
 

 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF WAUCONDA 
REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 
101 N. MAIN STREET - WAUCONDA, IL 

 
MAY 17, 2022 

6:00 P.M. 
 
For Remote Attendance: Those not willing or able to physically attend in-person may view this meeting 
remotely via YouTube Live Stream at the following web address: https://youtu.be/QkIpUBVhCbc  
 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT: Citizens wishing to address the Village Board on any topic of Village business may do 

so during the public comment section near the beginning of the agenda after requesting to speak by providing name, 
address, and contact information on the sign-in form near the entrance to the Board room.  Citizens wishing to address 
the public body on any specific item that appears under new business on the agenda will have an opportunity to do so 
when that agenda item is under consideration if they have requested to address the Board on the topic by completing 
the sign-in form located near the entrance to the Board Room prior to the start of the meeting.  Please keep remarks 
concise.  Individual speakers will be limited to three minutes.  All audience participation must be recognized by the 
Mayor including questions to other Board members, staff or petitioners.  When there is a controversial issue or large 
group present, the Mayor may limit the total amount of time allocated to those who want to speak and all who speak 
are asked to comply with the established time limit. 

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

(Last Ordinance No. was 2022-O-08) (Last Resolution No. was 2022-R-04) 
 

6. MOTION TO APPROVE CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA BY OMNIBUS 
VOTE 

 
7. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of the Bills for Payment from April 23, 2022 to May 6, 2022 in the Amount of 
$934,757.52 

B. Approval of the Minutes of the May 3, 2022 Regular Village Board Meeting 
C. Approval of the Request from Wauconda Moose Lodge 1969 for the Closure of South Maple 

from 8:00 AM until 5:00 PM on Monday, May 30 
D. Approval of the Request from Chief Wermes for the Closure of Main Street from 176 to 

Bangs Street for the 2022 National Night Out Event on August 2, from 4:00 PM to 9:00 PM 

https://youtu.be/QkIpUBVhCbc


 
 

 
8. MOTION TO APPROVE ITEMS A THROUGH D ON THE CONSENT AGENDA 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Consideration and Approval of the Purchase of a Terex Hi-Ranger Optima TC55 2024 

from Terex Utilities, Inc. through the Sourcewell Joint Purchasing Contract 
B. Consideration and Approval of the Purchase of a 2024 Flatbed Chassis from Rush Truck 

Center through the State of Illinois (CMS) Joint Bidding Contract 
C. Consideration and Approval of the Purchase of a 2024 International 5-Ton Dump Truck 

Snow Plow from Rush Truck Center through the State of Illinois (CMS) Joint Bidding 
Contract 

D. Consideration and Approval of a Disbursement to Yamon Properties, LLC in the amount 
of $20,369.01 for Façade Improvements at 314 & 316 West Liberty Street 

E. Consideration and Approval of a Contract with Priority One Janitorial Services for the 
Janitorial Services at Village Hall, Community Development, Public Works and the 
Citizen’s Activity Center in an amount not-to-exceed $21,480.00 

 
 

10. MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
11. COMMITTEE REPORTS & TRUSTEE COMMENTS 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT                                                                 

 
Posted 5/13/2022 

 
The Mayor and Board of Trustees welcome you to the “Regular Village Board Meeting”.  These meetings take place the first 
and third Tuesday of every month.  During Regular Board meetings, a consent agenda is presented to the Board for a vote.  All 
items under the consent agenda are considered to be settled and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no additional 
discussion of these items unless there is a request by a Board member. 
 
The documents provided with the Board Meeting agenda are for informational purposes only.  Until or unless the Village 
Board votes on a matter contained on the agenda, the matter is not final. 



 

ATTEST:

______________________________________

Clerk

Vendor Fund CK NO.

ACH

GF 100296

W/S 100296

GF 100234

General Fund (10)

Water Sewer Fund (20)

Capital Fund (30)

TIF Fund (32)

Motor Fuel Tax Fund (55)

SSA #1 (72)

Debt Service (80) 

Total Automated AP

Projects Memo Only

Lake Michigan Water (28) 215,086.59$             Included in Water/Sewer Fund (20) Above

North Water Project (25) ‐$                           Included in Water/Sewer Fund (20) Above

TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Gross Payroll 5/4/2022 309,537.47$            

TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND PAYROLL

IPBC Insurance 84,271.17                Medical, Dental & Life Insurance Premiums ‐ Employee and Employer

Manual Check ‐ Eric's Lawn Maint.

Manual Check ‐ Eric's Lawn Maint.

Manual Check ‐ Alise Coulter

RECAPITULATION
Manual Checks and ACH Payments

Description Amount

President

Accounts Payable Period: 4/23/2022 ‐ 5/6/2022

The President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Wauconda approves Warrant as stated below and authorizes the Village Treasurer 
to forward payment this 17th day of May, 2022

___________________________________________

3,180.00                  

2,130.00                  

Village Lawn Service

Village Lawn Service

311,344.28$                                                                 

Total Combined Fund 89,824.27$                  

Village Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable by Fund

127,558.58$                                                                 

535,395.78$                                                                

$934,757.52

74,217.92$                                                                   

‐$                                                                               

‐$                                                                               

22,275.00$                                                                   

‐$                                                                               

$625,220.05

 Costco Membership/Cleaning Supples 243.10                      



AP Treasurer's Report

List of Bills by Vendor

Board Meeting Date:

May 17, 2022

Vendor Fund Department Account No. Account Description Amount Item Description

Ace Hardware

Water & Sewer Fund Wastewater Collection 20‐27‐5320 Maintenance ‐ Equipment 18.84 6 Clamps for Lift Stations ‐ P.W.

General Fund Marine /  Lake Mgmt 10‐50‐5320 Maintenance ‐ Equipment 7.72 Fasteners,Nuts,Parts for Weed Harvester ‐ P.W.

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 102.73 Parts for Signage for Tree Program ‐ P.W.

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 58.49 Tarp ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 32.90 Outlet,2 Wire Brushes,Tape Measure ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 220.68

 Adams Steel Service and Supply Inc

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 100.00 Propane Tank Rental Yearly in Advance ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 100.00

AEP Energy

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐5430 Utility ‐ Street Lighting 9,898.54 Street Lighting ‐  3/22/22 to 4/20/22

     Total for Vendor 9,898.54

Air Gas USA LLC

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐5340 Maintenance ‐ Infrastructure 41.86 Freezing Agent for Water Breaks ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 41.86

Albany Steel and Brass Corporation

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐5345 Downtown Beautification 652.00 Supplies for Concrete Work ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 652.00

American Backflow and Fire Prevention 

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐5310 Maintenance‐Building & Grounds 303.80 Annual Backflow Inspection ‐ Admin.

General Fund Community Development 10‐11‐5310 Maintenance‐Building & Grounds 75.95 Annual Backflow Inspection ‐ C.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5310 Maintenance‐Building & Grounds 303.80 Annual Backflow Inspection ‐ P.D.

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐5310 Maintenance‐Building & Grounds 151.90 Annual Backflow Inspection ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐5310 Maintenance‐Building & Grounds 227.85 Annual Backflow Inspection ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐5310 Maintenance‐Building & Grounds 759.50 Annual Backflow Inspection ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 1,822.80

American Planning Association

General Fund Community Development 10‐11‐4520 Dues/Memberships 718.00 Annual Membership Dues ‐ Greg Anderson ‐ C.D.

     Total for Vendor 718.00



AP Treasurer's Report

List of Bills by Vendor

Board Meeting Date:

May 17, 2022

Vendor Fund Department Account No. Account Description Amount Item Description

American Public Works Association

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐4520 Dues/Memberships 92.50  Membership Dues 4/19/22  thru 5/31/23  to add L Mak ‐ P.W.

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐4520 Dues/Memberships 92.50  Membership Dues ‐ 4/19/22 thru 5/31/23 to add  L Mak ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 185.00

BUMPER TO BUMPER

Water & Sewer Fund Wastewater Collection 20‐27‐5320 Maintenance ‐ Equipment 143.84 10 Radiator Caps,6 Coolants ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Wastewater Collection 20‐27‐5320 Maintenance ‐ Equipment 216.53 Parts for Several Lift Station Generators ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Wastewater Collection 20‐27‐5320 Maintenance ‐ Equipment 68.94 Oil for Several Lift Station Generators ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 429.31

Frank Burton

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐4280 Expense Allowance 85.92 Reimburse for Uniform Jeans ‐ F Burton ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 85.92

Central Lake County Joint Action Water 

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐6345 CLCJAWA Water Purchase 41,198.25 Monthly Water Usage ‐ April 2022

     Total for Vendor 41,198.25

CivicPlus, Inc.

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐4530 Codification Services 218.00 Codification Updates ‐ Admin.

     Total for Vendor 218.00

John Combs

General Fund Police 10‐12‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 386.65 3 Pr Dress Pants,2 Belts,4 Dress Shirts ‐ J Combs ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 386.65

ComEd

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐5430 Utility ‐ Street Lighting 25.59 Street Lighting ‐  3/25 to 4/25/22

     Total for Vendor 25.59

Core and  Main LP

Water & Sewer Fund Fixed Asset‐R/R Water 20‐17‐8600 Fixed Asset‐R/R Water 4,485.00 39 Water Meters ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 90.00 Meter Flange Set ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 4,575.00



AP Treasurer's Report

List of Bills by Vendor

Board Meeting Date:

May 17, 2022

Vendor Fund Department Account No. Account Description Amount Item Description

CrankStart Design Company LLC

General Fund Escrows 10‐98‐E558 Wauconda Cruise Nights 40.00 Revisions to Cruise Night 2022 Post Cards

     Total for Vendor 40.00

Cutler Workwear

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐4280 Expense Allowance 287.91 Work Boots ‐ B Romero ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 287.91

CYN Counseling Center

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5631 Service Fees ‐ Other 29.75 Counseling/Treatmernt Notes given to P.D. for Investigation

     Total for Vendor 29.75

Dannys  Glass and Trim

General Fund Marine /  Lake Mgmt 10‐50‐5320 Maintenance ‐ Equipment 185.00 Rebuild Boat Seat on Marine Unit #1

     Total for Vendor 185.00

Dahme Mechanical Industries Inc

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐5320 Maintenance ‐ Equipment 525.00 Rebuild Washer at WWTP

     Total for Vendor 525.00

Dons Welding And Fabricating

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐5330 Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 357.50 Repair to Tailgate on Truck #22 ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 357.50

Eder Casella and Company

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐5135 Payroll Services Contract* 62.61 Payroll Service ‐ April 2022 ‐ Admin.

General Fund Community Development 10‐11‐5135 Payroll Services Contract* 53.35 Payroll Service ‐ April 2022 ‐ C.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5135 Payroll Services Contract* 492.80 Payroll Service ‐ April 2022 ‐ P.D.

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐5135 Payroll Services Contract* 93.32 Payroll Service ‐ April 2022 ‐ P.W.

General Fund EMA 10‐16‐5135 Payroll Services Contract* 2.95 Payroll Service ‐ April 2022 ‐ P.W.

General Fund Marine /  Lake Mgmt 10‐50‐5135 Payroll Services Contract* 15.55 Payroll Service ‐ April 2022 ‐ P.D.

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐5135 Payroll Services Contract* 129.74 Payroll Service ‐ April 2022 ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐5135 Payroll Services Contract* 74.62 Payroll Service ‐ April 2022 ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Wastewater Collection 20‐27‐5135 Payroll Services Contract* 59.46 Payroll Service ‐ April 2022 ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 984.40



AP Treasurer's Report

List of Bills by Vendor

Board Meeting Date:

May 17, 2022

Vendor Fund Department Account No. Account Description Amount Item Description

Fed Ex

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐6120 Postage 36.07 Shipping Postage for P.W. Equip. Sent out for Service

     Total for Vendor 36.07

Jonathan Finze

General Fund Police 10‐12‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 19.25 Laundry Deterg. for Uniforms ‐ J Finze ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐4511 K9 Unit 184.98 Safety Lights for K‐9 Gear ‐ J Finze ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 204.23

First Bankcard

General Fund Police 10‐12‐4510 Training/Conferences 399.00 ILACP Annual Conference ‐ Chief Wermes

General Fund Police 10‐12‐4510 Training/Conferences 319.79 Rental Car for ILACP Annual Conference ‐ Chief Wermes

General Fund Police 10‐12‐4510 Training/Conferences 633.72 ILACP Policy Council Meeting ‐ Chief Wermes

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐4510 Training/Conferences 219.00 ICPA Governement Conference ‐ T Lyons ‐ Finance

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐4510 Training/Conferences 116.67 Amer.Public Works Assn.2022 Meeting

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐4510 Training/Conferences 116.67 Amer.Public Works Assn 2022 Meeting

Water & Sewer Fund Wastewater Collection 20‐27‐4510 Training/Conferences 116.66 Amer.Public Works Assn 2022 Meeting

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐5132 Software/Licensing 158.00 Software to Automate P.W. Forms

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐5132 Software/Licensing 158.00 Software to Automate P.W. Forms

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐5132 Software/Licensing 158.00 Software to Automate P.W. Forms

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐6140 Office Supplies/Equipment 153.95 Water Resistance Paper for No Parking Signs for Special Events

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐5540 Subscriptions 83.88 E‐Mail Marketing Subscription ‐ Admin.

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐6185 Officials Expense 362.94 Awards for Retirements/Recog./ Mayor's Community Service Awards

     Total for Vendor 2,996.28

GALLS LLC

General Fund Police 10‐12‐4280 Expense Allowance 69.98 2 Uniform Work Shirts,1 Pr Uniform Pants ‐ P Musser ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐4280 Expense Allowance 65.40 3 Uniform Work Shirts ‐ Hernandez  #123  ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 132.99 Work Boots ‐ Sek #130 ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 268.37

Mark Gedde

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐4280 Expense Allowance 278.23 Reimbursr for 5 Pr Work Jeans ‐ M Gedde ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 278.23

Gil Plumbing Inc

General Fund Community Development 10‐11‐5170 Plumbing Inspections 75.00 Plumbing Inspection ‐ 1130 North Shore Dr

     Total for Vendor 75.00



AP Treasurer's Report

List of Bills by Vendor

Board Meeting Date:

May 17, 2022

Vendor Fund Department Account No. Account Description Amount Item Description

Gloria Aldazaba

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐5310 Maintenance‐Building & Grounds 560.00 Village Cleaning Service ‐ May 2022 ‐ Admin.

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐5311 Maintenance‐Bldg & Grounds CAC 400.00 Village Cleaning Service ‐ May 2022 ‐ CAC

General Fund Community Development 10‐11‐5310 Maintenance‐Building & Grounds 560.00 Village Cleaning Service ‐ May 2022 ‐ C.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5310 Maintenance‐Building & Grounds 1,540.00 Village Cleaning Service ‐ May 2022 ‐ P.D.

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐5310 Maintenance‐Building & Grounds 184.80 Village Cleaning Service ‐ May 2022 ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐5310 Maintenance‐Building & Grounds 184.80 Village Cleaning Service ‐ May 2022 ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐5310 Maintenance‐Building & Grounds 98.00 Village Cleaning Service ‐ May 2022 ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Wastewater Collection 20‐27‐5310 Maintenance‐Building & Grounds 92.40 Village Cleaning Service ‐ May 2022 ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 3,620.00

Hydrite Chemical Company

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐6180 Treatment Chemicals 6,448.05 Treatment Chemicals ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐6180 Treatment Chemicals 3,345.16 Treatment Chemicals ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 9,793.21

Hydraulic Services and Repairs Inc

General Fund Marine /  Lake Mgmt 10‐50‐5320 Maintenance ‐ Equipment 229.06 Fittitngs,Hoses,Parts for Weed Harvestor ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 229.06

Illinois EPA (ACH)

Water & Sewer Fund Lake Michigan Water 20‐28‐7103 IEPA L17‐5317 ‐ Principal 37,759.49 Drinking Water Project ‐ Principal Pmt.

Water & Sewer Fund Lake Michigan Water 20‐28‐7203 IEPA L17‐5317 ‐ Interest 11,277.10 Drinking Water Project ‐ Interest Pmt.

     Total for Vendor 49,036.59

Illinois Public Employer Labor Relations 

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐4510 Training/Conferences 99.00 Webinar ‐ Managing FMLA/ADA/Worker's Comp.‐ J Ronaldi ‐ HR

     Total for Vendor 99.00

IPRF Illinois Public Risk Fund

General Fund Tort / Risk Management 10‐70‐5600 Worker's Compensation Premium* 18,046.19 Worker's Comp. ‐ April 2022 ‐ Admin. C.D. P.D.

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐5600 Worker's Compensation Premium* 2,345.13 Worker's Comp. ‐ April 2022 ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐5600 Worker's Compensation Premium* 939.84 Worker's Comp. ‐ April 2022 ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Wastewater Collection 20‐27‐5600 Worker's Compensation Premium* 939.84 Worker's Comp. ‐ April 2022 ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 22,271.00



AP Treasurer's Report

List of Bills by Vendor

Board Meeting Date:

May 17, 2022

Vendor Fund Department Account No. Account Description Amount Item Description

Impact Networking LLC

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐5620 Maint/Lease Agreements 196.80 Office Copier Maintenance Agreement ‐ 3/28 to 6/27/22 ‐  P.W.

     Total for Vendor 196.80

In Situ Inc

General Fund Marine /  Lake Mgmt 10‐50‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipmlent 828.82 Water Level Sensor for Bangs Lake ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 828.82

Interstate All Battery Center

Water & Sewer Fund Wastewater Collection 20‐27‐5320 Maintenance ‐ Equipment 148.75 Battery for Lift Station #18 ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Wastewater Collection 20‐27‐5320 Maintenance ‐ Equipment 148.75 Battery for Lift Station #14 ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 297.50

Interstate Billing Service Inc

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐5330 Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 829.74 Power Steering Pump & Parts for Truck #7 ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 829.74

Lee Jensen Sales Company Inc

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 1,215.00 2 Body Harnesses,6 Shock Absorbers for P.W. Trucks

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 1,040.00 2 Body Harnesses,6 Shock Absorbers for P.W. Trucks

Water & Sewer Fund Wastewater Collection 20‐27‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 46.00 2 Body Harnesses,6 Shock Absorbers for P.W. Trucks

     Total for Vendor 2,301.00

JM Irrigation

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐5320 Maintenance ‐ Equipment 357.50 Turn on Irrigation System at P.W.

     Total for Vendor 357.50

Lake County Collector

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐6210 Property Taxes ‐ Non Exempt 748.36 Property Taxes ‐ 0 N Main St

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐6210 Property Taxes ‐ Non Exempt 23.70 Property Taxes ‐ 0 Larkdale Row

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐6210 Property Taxes ‐ Non Exempt 14.00 Property Taxes ‐ 27003 N Bayview St

     Total for Vendor 786.06

Lake County Chiefs Of Police Association

General Fund Police 10‐12‐4510 Training/Conferences 25.00 Monthly Meeting/Lunch ‐ Chief Wermes

     Total for Vendor 25.00



AP Treasurer's Report

List of Bills by Vendor

Board Meeting Date:

May 17, 2022

Vendor Fund Department Account No. Account Description Amount Item Description

Lake County State's Attorney

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5183 Lake County Forensic Crime Lab 2,995.00 Forensic Laboratory Annual Membership ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 2,995.00

LIONHEART Critical Power Specialists In

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐5320 Maintenance ‐ Equipment 3,682.00 Repair to Generator at P.W.

     Total for Vendor 3,682.00

Lake County Treasurer

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 519.77 Signs ‐ Mar. 2022 ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 519.77

LLD Electric Company

Water & Sewer Fund Wastewater Collection 20‐27‐5320 Maintenance ‐ Equipment 1,200.00 Breaker Replacements and Testing at Lift Station #25 P.W.

     Total for Vendor 1,200.00

Major Crash Assistance Team

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5530 Organizational Memberships 500.00 Annual Membership Fee ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 500.00

Master Auto Repair Klinic Inc

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5330 Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 30.00 Oil & Filter Change ‐ #110 ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5330 Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 30.00 Oil & Filter Change ‐ #114 ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5330 Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 40.39 Oil & Filter Change ‐ #119 ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5330 Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 30.00 Oil & Filter Change ‐ #104 ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5330 Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 30.00 Oil & Filter Change ‐ #105 ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5330 Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 216.05 Repair to Squad #116 ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 376.44

Menards Inc

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 39.36 Toilet Paper Well #4 ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐5330 Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 50.96 Punch Set,Univ.Joint,Pail,Waste Basket,Magnet

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐5330 Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 38.75 Punch Set,Univ.Joint,Pail,Waste Basket,Magnet

Water & Sewer Fund Wastewater Collection 20‐27‐5320 Maintenance ‐ Equipment 38.29 Hose Clamps,Hardware for Generator ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 39.47 2X4, Flex Tape ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 206.83



AP Treasurer's Report

List of Bills by Vendor

Board Meeting Date:

May 17, 2022

Vendor Fund Department Account No. Account Description Amount Item Description

Mikes Towing Inc

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐5330 Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 2,082.43 Repairs to Truck #7 ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 2,082.43

Motorola Solutions Credit Company LLC

General Capital ProjectFixed Asset‐R/R Police 30‐64‐8600 Fixed‐Asset R/R ‐ PD 74,217.92  Annual Pmt. of Starcom Radios ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 74,217.92

Magna Rudolph F Law Office Of

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐5110 Legal Services 296.25 Legal Services ‐ Bachler Lawsuit

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐5110 Legal Services 4,799.25 Legal Services ‐ General Corporate Matters ‐ Admin.

General Fund Community Development 10‐11‐5110 Legal Services 533.25 Legal Services ‐ General Corporate Matters ‐ C.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5110 Legal Serv ‐ Prosecution 6,827.00 Legal Services ‐ Prosecution Matters ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 12,455.75

Municipal Well And Pump Inc.

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐6180 Treatment Chemicals 2,499.00 Treatment Chemicals ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 2,499.00

Nalco Water Pretreatment Solutions LLC

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐5210 Lab Testing 57.00 Lab Testing Expense ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 57.00

National Wash Authority

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐5340 Maintenance ‐ Infrastructure 13,600.00 Clean and Presasure Wash Water Towers #1 & #3 ‐ P,W,

     Total for Vendor 13,600.00

Northern Illinois University

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐4510 Training/Conferences 240.00 ILCMA/WCMA 2022 Summer Conference ‐ A Matson

     Total for Vendor 240.00

Northeastern IL Regional Crime Lab

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5182 Northeast IL Region Crime Lab 22,180.00 Annual Membership and Maintenance ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 22,180.00



AP Treasurer's Report

List of Bills by Vendor

Board Meeting Date:

May 17, 2022

Vendor Fund Department Account No. Account Description Amount Item Description

North East Multi Regional Training Inc

General Fund Police 10‐12‐4510 Training/Conferences 2,850.00 Annual Membership Fees ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐4511 K9 Unit 425.00 K‐9 Training Course ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 3,275.00

Office Depot

General Fund Community Development 10‐11‐6140 Office Supplies/Equipment 38.15 Tissues,Office Dusters,Sign Here Stickers,3 Ring Binder ‐ C.D.

General Fund Community Development 10‐11‐6140 Office Supplies/Equipment 50.59 1 Box Jacket File Folders ‐ C.D.

     Total for Vendor 88.74

Pace Analytical Services LLC

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐5210 Lab Testing 230.00 Lab Testing Expense ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 230.00

Paddock Publications Inc

General Fund Escrows 10‐98‐0677 108 E Mill Ganek 87.40 Public Hearing Notice ‐ 108 E Mill St ‐ C.D.

     Total for Vendor 87.40

James Patterson

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐4510 Training/Conferences 203.38 IDPH Plumbing License Renewal Course ‐ J Patterson ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 203.38

Polydyne Inc

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐6180 Treatment Chemicals 1,537.02 Treatment Chemicals ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 1,537.02

Pomps Tire Service Inc

General Fund Marine /  Lake Mgmt 10‐50‐5320 Maintenance ‐ Equipment 491.35 New Tire for Weed Harvester ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 491.35

Pettibone P F and Company

General Fund Police 10‐12‐4280 Expense Allowance 34.00 2 Police Baseball Caps ‐ K Wich ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 34.00



AP Treasurer's Report

List of Bills by Vendor

Board Meeting Date:

May 17, 2022

Vendor Fund Department Account No. Account Description Amount Item Description

Quicket Solutions

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5132 Software/Licensing 22,700.40 Annual Softwar e Subscription ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 22,700.40

Humberto Reyes

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐4280 Expense Allowance 300.00 7 Pr Uniform Jeans ‐ H Reyes ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 300.00

RHMG Engineers Inc

Water & Sewer Fund Capital Projects   20‐71‐8500 Water/Sewer Capital Projects 396.00 Aerobic Digester 1 & 2 Rehab.

     Total for Vendor 396.00

Russo Power Equipment

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 1,449.99 New Chainsaw ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 1,449.99

SAE Customs Inc

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐5330 Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 225.00 Reapir to Lights on Truck #21 ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 225.00

The Sherwin Williams Company

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 68.20 Paint for Larkdale Crosswalk Curb ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 68.20

Streichers

General Fund Police 10‐12‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 59.98 2 Pr Tactical Pants ‐ Moyer  #152 ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 160.00 3 Under Vest Shirts,‐ Moyer  #152 ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 49.99 Dress Uniform Shirt ‐  Sek  ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 425.96 2 Pr Uniform Pants,Holster,Rain Coat,Baton,Belts,Handcuffs‐ Sek

General Fund Police 10‐12‐4280 Expense Allowance 118.00 Softshell Jacket with Logo Patch ‐ KW #104 ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐4280 Expense Allowance 68.00 2 Polo Shirts,‐ Caravia ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐4280 Expense Allowance 34.00 2 Polo Shirts,‐ Caravia ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 104.97 3 Polo Shirts,Rain Coat,Holster ‐ Sek  ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐4280 Expense Allowance 54.99 3 Under Vest Shirts, 1 Pr Cargo Pants ‐ Wich ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 1,075.89



AP Treasurer's Report

List of Bills by Vendor

Board Meeting Date:

May 17, 2022

Vendor Fund Department Account No. Account Description Amount Item Description

Suburban Laboratories Inc

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐5210 Lab Testing 1,165.15 Lab Testing Expense ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 1,165.15

The Bank of New York Mellon

Debt Service Fund Debt Service 80‐80‐7200 2015 GO Ref Bnd ‐ Interest 22,275.00 Lake County GORefunding Bonds Series 2015 Int.Pmt.

Water & Sewer Fund Lake Michigan Water 20‐28‐7201 2017 GO Bond‐Interest 109,500.00 Lake County GORefunding Bonds Series 2017 Int.Pmt.

Water & Sewer Fund Lake Michigan Water 20‐28‐7205 2021B GO Ref Bnd‐Interest 56,550.00 Lake County GORefunding Bonds 2021B Int.Pmt.

     Total for Vendor 188,325.00

Thelen Materials LLC

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 529.28 Sand/Gravel Delivered ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 529.29 Sand/Gravel Delivered ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 1,058.57

Third Millennium Associates Inc

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐5631 Service Fees ‐ Other 475.43 Green Pay Monthly Account Transaction and Server Fees P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐5631 Service Fees ‐ Other 475.42 Green Pay Monthly Account Transaction and Server Fees P.W.

     Total for Vendor 950.85

TransUnion Risk and Alternative

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5631 Service Fees ‐ Other 75.00 Monthly Data/People Search ‐ Mar.2022 ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 75.00

Traffic Control and Protection

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 849.35 3 Pedestrian Signs ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 849.35

United States Postal Service

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐5521 Village Newsletter 1,502.00 Postage for Village Summer Newsletter

     Total for Vendor 1,502.00



AP Treasurer's Report

List of Bills by Vendor

Board Meeting Date:

May 17, 2022

Vendor Fund Department Account No. Account Description Amount Item Description

USA Blue Book

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐6180 Treatment Chemicals 321.40 Treatment Chemicals ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 38.57 Core Sampler Dipstick ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐6120 Postage 48.62 Freight Charge for Shipping Core Sampler Dipstick ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 99.05 Plastic Ampules for Testing ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 543.48 Petri Dishes,Sterile Cotton Swabs ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Wastewater Collection 20‐27‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 364.00 Core Dipstick ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 1,225.26 Nitrile Gloves,Gas Used for Gas Detection & Meters ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 2,640.38

VCG Uniform

General Fund Police 10‐12‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 103.45 1 Pr Tactical Cargo Pants for Marine Unit ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐4280 Expense Allowance 108.45 2 Shirts,Ball Cap with Police Logo ‐ Abney  #126 ‐ P.D.

General Fund Police 10‐12‐4280 Expense Allowance 186.00 2 Pr Tactical Cargo Pants ‐ Johnson #115 ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 397.90

Verizon Wireless

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐5511 Mobile Phones 467.52 Mobile Phones ‐  3‐13 ‐ 4/12/22  ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐5511 Mobile Phones 42.48 Mobile Phones ‐  3‐13 ‐ 4/12/22  ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Wastewater Collection 20‐27‐5511 Mobile Phones 337.52 Mobile Phones ‐  3‐13 ‐ 4/12/22  ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 847.52

Victor Ford

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐5330 Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 370.72 Repairs to Truck #25 ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 370.72

Wauconda Chamber Of Commerce

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐6185 Officials Expense 500.00 Annual Chamber Golf Outing ‐ Mayor,J Barbini,T Howe,N Ferrier

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐6250 Civic Donations 500.00 Annual Chamber Golf Outing ‐ A Matson,Chief,M Reynolds,J Mann

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐6250 Civic Donations 587.50 Annual Chamber Golf Outing ‐ M Reynolds,JMann,J Coulter,JLowe

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐6185 Officials Expense 262.50 Annual Chamber Golf Outing ‐ JKuhn,NFerrier,ACoulter,STurlington

     Total for Vendor 1,850.00

Warehouse Direct Workplace Solutions

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐6140 Office Supplies/Equipment 56.80 1 Case of Toilet Paper ‐ Admin.

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐6140 Office Supplies/Equipment 109.49 2 Pk Labels,Stapler,Copy Paper,Adding Machine Rolls,Post‐It Note

General Fund Administration 10‐10‐6140 Office Supplies/Equipment 109.19 Toner Cartridge ‐ Admin.

     Total for Vendor 275.48



AP Treasurer's Report

List of Bills by Vendor

Board Meeting Date:

May 17, 2022

Vendor Fund Department Account No. Account Description Amount Item Description

Wauconda School District 118

General Fund Police 10‐12‐6150 Gasoline & Oil 7,423.31 Fuel Bill ‐ Mar.2022 ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 7,423.31

Wauconda American Legion

General Fund No Department 10‐00‐3950 Donations ‐ Other 300.00 Wauconda Honors Banner Donation ‐ Suler Ahrev

     Total for Vendor 300.00

Wauconda Boat Inc

General Fund Marine /  Lake Mgmt 10‐50‐5320 Maintenance ‐ Equipment 145.70 Service/Maintenance to Marine Unit #218 ‐ P.D.

     Total for Vendor 145.70

Wauconda Car Wash

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5330 Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 64.00 16 Car Washes of Police Vehicles

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐5330 Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 12.99 Ultimate Car Wash of Village Vehicle ‐ C.D.

     Total for Vendor 76.99

Wickstrom Auto Group

General Fund Police 10‐12‐5330 Maintenance ‐ Vehicles 259.79 Customer Pay Portion of Warranty Work ‐ Squad #116 P.D.

     Total for Vendor 259.79

Wrap Guyz

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 355.00 Regulatory and Warning Street Signs ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 355.00

Zep Sales and Service

General Fund Public Works ‐ Streets 10‐13‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 18.64 Brown Paper Towels ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Water 20‐20‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 18.65 Brown Paper Towels ‐ P.W.

Water & Sewer Fund Sewer 20‐21‐6130 Operating Supplies/Equipment 18.65 Brown Paper Towels ‐ P.W.

     Total for Vendor 55.94

Report Total: 535,395.78



Page 1 of 7 
Regular Session 
Meeting Minutes 
May 3, 2022                                         

 
 
 

 
VILLAGE OF WAUCONDA 

REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
101 N. MAIN STREET - WAUCONDA, IL 

TUESDAY, MAY 3, 2022 - 6:00 P.M. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Sode called the Regular Village Board Meeting to order at 6:00 PM 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
The Posting of the Colors and Pledge of Allegiance were led by Boy Scout Troop 90. 

 
3. ROLL CALL 

Upon Roll Call by Clerk Radcliffe, the following Trustees were present: 
Trustees Barbini, Howe, Schlick, Shaw, Kuhn and Ferrier.   
QUORUM PRESENT 
 
Also present:  Allison Matson (Village Administrator), Tom Lyons (Treasurer/Director of 
Finance), Rudy Magna (Village Attorney), Dave Wermes (Chief of Police), Gregory Anderson 
(Director of Community Development) and Jacob Mann (Public Works Superintendent).  
 

4. PROCLAMATIONS 
A. Mental Health Awareness Month Proclamation 

Mayor Sode proclaimed May, 2022 as Mental Health Awareness Month in Wauconda and 
called upon our citizens, government agencies, public and private institutions, businesses 
and schools to recommit our Village to increasing awareness and understanding of mental 
illness, and the need for appropriate and accessible services for all people with mental 
illnesses to promote recovery. 

B. Drinking Water Week Proclamation 
Mayor Sode called upon the citizens of our Village to help protect our source waters from 
pollution, practice water conservation and get involved with their water by familiarizing 
themselves with it, and proclaimed May 1-7, 2022 as Drinking Water Week. 

C. National Public Works Week Proclamation 
Mayor Sode proclaimed the week May 15–21, 2022 as National Public Works Week urging 
all citizens to join with representatives of the American Public Works Association and 
government agencies to pay tribute to our Public Works professionals, engineers, 
managers, and employees, and to recognize the substantial contributions they make to 
protecting our national health, safety, and quality of life. 

D. Building Safety Month Proclamation 
Mayor Sode proclaimed the month of May, 2022 as Building Safety Month. Accordingly, 
he encourages our citizens to join us as we participate in Building Safety Month. 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 7 
Regular Session 
Meeting Minutes 
May 3, 2022                                         

5. PRESENTATION 
A. FBLA State Competitors 
Wendy Mills, Wauconda High School’s FBLA Advisor, presented 21 of the WHS FBLA team 
members.  Wendy advised this is her 22nd year with FBLA and she is in her 27th year of 
teaching.  Ms. Mills advised this is their first live FBLA year so they are all really excited.  She 
stated about 55 students participated in State, with 44 qualifying for Nationals, and 38 are 
going to Chicago for Nationals along with 48 other states, 7 territories, and 5 other countries.  
Ms. Mills presented her students, ranging from Freshman through Seniors and they each 
introduced themselves and spoke about their event and what place they took.  Events ranged 
from Computer Problem Solving to Video Coding, as well as Mental Health, FAFSA, Social 
Media, Publication Design and Marketing and Sales.   
 
Wendy Mills further explained that these students are now going on to the National level which 
not only means they are representing Wauconda, but are representing the State of Illinois.  The 
kids are aware that most of them have to beat out 150 – 200 teams in order to be able to get 
into the top 10, to get themselves onstage, but obviously they will be as prepared as much as 
possible.  Ms. Mills stated she was elected to the National Board of the FBLA and will be 
flying out to western Virginia up to 4 or 5 times a year in an effort to keep things improving 
for the student experience in FBLA; her term ends in 2024.   
Mayor Sode thanked Wendy Mills and the FBLA students, ecnouraging them to keep up the 
good work; they represent Wauconda very very well.   
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Larkdale resident, Russ Shmerl spoke to the Board regarding what he feels is the grave condition 
of the Larkdale Lagoons due to neglect by the Village of Wauconda, and the residents that live 
along the shore.  He presented to the Board four documents:  his letter dated April 1, 2022 to the 
Director of Public Works, Mike Reynolds, regarding his concerns, a history of the Lagoons that 
he wrote in March of 2022, a letter from Mayor Eschenbach dated August 21, 1995 to the residents 
of Larkdale regarding the completion of the first phase of the Village’s Shoreline Restabilization 
Project, and a study and shoreline stabilization training course summary offered to residents from 
Hey and Associates, Inc. that was an attachment to Mayor Eschenbauch’s letter.   
 
Mr. Shmerl referenced an article that was in the Daily Herald on March 14 regarding privately 
owned backyard pond, Flint Creek.  The push by Lake Barrington officials to secure federal 
infrastructure funds to clean up Flint Lake is an example of why federal spending needs scrutiny.  
Please explain to the fine citizens of Kansas, Mississippi or Hawaii that they should help pay up 
for a small private backyard, man-made pond.  This pond is the concern of the housing 
development that built it and the homeowners who live there and benefit from the higher home 
values due to the pond, not the taxpayers.  Mr. Shmerl stated his opinion is that if Lake Barrington 
can ask for funds for a privately held pond, surely Wauconda can ask for funds for a Village owned 
pond through the infrastructure investment and jobs act.   
 
Mayor Sode thanked Mr. Shmerl and asked him to please present his documentation to Village 
Administrator Matson.   
 

7. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 



Page 3 of 7 
Regular Session 
Meeting Minutes 
May 3, 2022                                         

(Last Ordinance No. was 2022-O-08) (Last Resolution No. was 2022-R-04) 
 
MOTION to Approve the Agenda made by Trustee Ferrier and seconded by Trustee Kuhn. 
Ayes 6, Nays 0  
MOTION DECLARED CARRIED 
 

8. MOTION TO APPROVE CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA BY OMNIBUS 
VOTE 

 
MOTION to Approve Consideration of Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote made by Trustee Kuhn 
and seconded by Trustee Shaw. 
Ayes 6, Nays 0 
MOTION DECLARED CARRIED  

 
9. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of the Bills for Payment from April 9, 2022 to April 22, 2022 in the Amount of 
$568,661.28 

B. Approval of the Minutes of the April 19, 2022 Regular Village Board Meeting 
C. Approval of the Request from Streamwood High School for the Waiver of the Watercraft 

Inspection Permit Fee for Participants in the Upstate 8 Conference Fishing Tournament on 
Bang’s Lake on May 13, 2022. 

  
10. MOTION TO APPROVE ITEMS A THROUGH C ON THE CONSENT AGENDA 

 
MOTION to Approve Items A through C on the Consent Agenda made by Trustee Shaw and 
seconded by Trustee Schlick. 
Ayes 6, Nays 0 
MOTION DECLARED CARRIED 
 

11.       NEW BUSINESS  
A.  Consideration and Approval of the Following Appointments: 
 1)  Director of Human Resources/Risk Management – Allison Matson 
 2)  Deputy Liquor Commissioner – Dr. John Barbini 
 3)  FOIA Officer – Brendaliz Mak 
 4)  Chairman, Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – Brad Mayer 
 5)  Vice-Chairman, Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – Dave Jakubek 
 6)  Commissioner, Board of Fire & Police Commissioners – Mark Kisselburg 
 7)  Trustee, Wauconda Police Pension Fund Board – Ron Price 
 8)  Director – SWALCO – Tom Shaw 
 9)  Alternate – SWALCO – Jeff Sode 
          10)  Watershed Development Ordinance Enforcement Officer – Chris Bouchard 

 
MOTION to Approve the Aforesaid Appointments, made by Trustee Schlick and 
seconded by Trustee Howe.   
Ayes 6, Nays 0 
MOTION DECLARED CARRIED 



Page 4 of 7 
Regular Session 
Meeting Minutes 
May 3, 2022                                         

 
 
B.  Consideration and Approval of an Agreement with Kluber Architects for a Maintenance Plan 

for Various Village Facilities and Public Works Building Assessment 
 
Discussion:  Administrator Matson advised this is Phase II of a project that we started.  
The first phase was an assessment of the general condition of our public buildings and to 
create a maintenance plan for our Village buildings for the next 5 – 10 years.  The second 
phase is to begin doing the same thing for our Public Works buildings where we will be 
staying for the long term.  Kluber will come in and do a walk through of all of our Public 
Works buildings to determine the scope of services for the Public Works side of the project.  
She advised that both of these will be getting started over this summer.  Administrator 
Matson advised it is a total not to exceed amount of $24,200 that is included in the FY23 
Capital Budget.  Superintendent Mann confirmed for Trustee Howe, this does include the 
lift station buildings, and per the Mayor’s request Administrator will confirm a timeline 
with Kluber.   
 
MOTION to Approve an Agreement with Kluber Architects for a Maintenance Plan for 
Various Village Facilities and Public Works Building Assessment made by Trustee Howe 
and seconded by Trustee Barbini.   
Ayes 6, Nays 0 
MOTION DECLARED CARRIED 
 

12.       MAYOR’S REPORT 
 

Mayor Sode advised that today marks his first year as Mayor of Wauconda and thanked the 
Village Board, directors, Chief, staff and the great residents of Wauconda for all their support.  He 
stated that it has been a fulfilling, fun and eventful year thanks to everyone’s support, and he is 
looking forward to many years of serving our wonderful community.  The Mayor also thanked 
Clerk Radcliffe and Trustee Kuhn for their service, noting that today also marks their first year on 
the Village Board. 
  
Mayor Sode thanked all the committee appointees for their continued service to our community, 
noting that their commitment is not overlooked and is greatly appreciated.  
 
The Mayor congratulated the FBLA team and instructors for their outstanding accomplishments 
at the State finals, they represented Wauconda well.   
 
Mayor Sode advised that Raúl’s Burrito Express is ready to open any day now, with hopes to open 
by Cinco d Mayo. 
  
With this being Public Works month, Mayor Sode thanked our Public Works Department for doing 
a great job keeping the Village infrastructure running, along with all their other obligations.  He 
asked Superintendent Mann to please let the Public Works crew know we appreciate all they do 
for our Village. 
 



Page 5 of 7 
Regular Session 
Meeting Minutes 
May 3, 2022                                         

The Mayor shared Matthews Middle School’s notable accomplishments: 
• The 8th grade basketball team finished in 1st place in the SMSC Conference 
• Three wrestlers on the wrestling team qualified for the IESA finals 
• Wrestler Nathan Randle finished in first place at the IESA State finals 

 
Lastly, and the Mayor advised most importantly, he wished his wife Patti a Happy Anniversary, 
noting that this Thursday marks 21 wonderful years.    
 

13. COMMITTEE REPORTS & TRUSTEE COMMENTS 
 
Trustee Barbini began by wishing a Happy Mother’s Day to all those who qualify.   
 
He congratulated the FBLA kids, they did a great job.  Seeing these students brings back a lot of 
great memories for him as a school administrator and teacher.  He stated that the biggest 
observation that he can make is that he retired from Wauconda School District 118 as 
Superintendent 18 years ago, and none of the students before us tonight were even around yet, but 
they have done a great job over there in developing this program.  He stated that Wendy Mills took 
it from practically nothing into what it is today and has done a wonderful job.   
 
Trustee Barbini stated that three of tonight’s Proclamations recognized key Core Village Services.  
These services are often taken for granted, but without them you can’t have a community; the 
health and safety of a community are totally jeopardized.  He echoed the Mayor’s remarks in what 
a great job all the staff in these areas have done to make Wauconda what it is today.   
 
Trustee Howe gave kudos to the wonderful FBLA competitors on another fine showing and 
wished those that are going on good luck at Nationals.   
 
Trustee Howe thanked his fellow Main Street Businesses for hosting the Mini-Golf Crawl on 
Saturday, stating it was a terrific event and the weather actually cooperated.  It was a good time.     
 
Trustee Howe wished good luck to all the high school anglers who will be enjoying Bang’s Lake 
fishing in a couple of weeks.   
 
Lastly, Trustee Howe gave a special shout-out to our terrific Public Works Department in 
recognition of Public Works Week, and thanked them for what they do all year long.    
 
Trustee Schlick congratulated all the FBLA young adults for all their success.   It’s a yearly 
occurrence that so many come to our meeting to be recognized, and it makes for a truly bright 
future for our community.   
 
Trustee Schlick also thanked Public Works for cleaning the water tower behind the Wauconda 
First Station One today, noting it’s a huge improvement and he looks forward to the other tower 
being completed.   
 
Trustee Shaw advised that last week was the Wauconda School District 118 reuse-a-shoe 
recycling contest and we were successful in collecting 1,764 shoes between the participating 



Page 6 of 7 
Regular Session 
Meeting Minutes 
May 3, 2022                                         

schools. 
 
Trustee Shaw was happy to announce the winner of the shoe contest was the smallest school 
(population-wise), The Wauconda Grade School. 
 
In continuing the tradition of former Trustee, Chuck Black, regarding these contests, Trustee 
Shaw relayed some interesting facts: 
 

• The Grade School collected more shoes each day than the other four schools combined. 
• The Grade School had 470 shoes on the first day of the contest. That is the single most 

shoes picked up from any one school on any one day. 
• The Grade School has now won the shoe contest four years in a row. 
• The Grade School this year had the largest ever winning percentage, with 2.75 shoes 

collected per student. 
• The Grade School had the largest ever winning spread this year by nudging out the 

Wauconda Middle School by a mere 1,240 shoes. 
• The Grade School had the largest ever winning percentage this year by beating the 

Wauconda Middle School by 2.5 shoes per student. 
• On a fun note, Mark Knigge picked up more shoes at the schools between Chuck, Mark, 

and himself for the week. Mark, on his own, collected 1,384 of the 1,764 shoes. If Chuck 
was not with Mark to help at the grade school last Monday, the total would have been 1,594 
shoes. 

• In closing we consider Mark the King of the reuse-a-shoe program and Chuck the Prince. 
At this point, he thinks we should anoint Principal Debbie Monroe as the Queen since she 
has pretty much made this contest nothing more than a race for second place. 

 
Trustee Shaw personally thanked the following for their help and assistance in making this 
contest a great success: 
 

• SWALCO 
• Chuck Black for his mentoring and dedication to these contests. 
• Jamie Davison from the PTO. 
• Jennifer Wolfe, the Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent. 
• The grade school for assisting with flyer translations. 
• All participating D118 schools and their front office staff. 
• Joe and Frank from Public Works, as we could not do this without them. 
• Most importantly, he thanked Mark Knigge for the tremendous amount of time and effort 

he dedicates to these contests and the many other Wauconda events. 
 

Trustee Kuhn gave her thanks to everyone in the room for a great first year, and ditto to what all 
of her fellow trustees have said this evening on all of our Proclamations and our great services in 
this town.  She also wished the Mayor and his wife a Happy Anniversary.   
 
Trustee Ferrier stated that she reiterates everything that was said before her.  She wished 
everyone a Happy Derby Day on Saturday, advising there are a lot of Derby events in Wauconda 



Page 7 of 7 
Regular Session 
Meeting Minutes 
May 3, 2022                                         

going on at local places.  She also wished a Happy Mother’s Day to all the mothers in her family, 
and everyone who mothers.  Trustee Ferrier also wished her mother a Happy Birthday on Tuesday, 
and her son a Happy 18th Birthday on Wednesday.   
 
Lastly, Trustee Ferrier reminded everyone that there is a blood drive at the American Legion on 
Saturday the 14th, from 8:00 AM – 2:00 PM; appointments are recommended.   

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

 
MOTION to Adjourn made by Trustee Barbini, and seconded by Trustee Ferrier at 6:40 PM. 
Ayes 6, Nays 0 

            MOTION DECLARED CARRIED 
   
 
 
  

Minutes respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________ 
Virginia “Gigi” Radcliffe, Village Clerk 



Regular Village Board Meeting 
May 17, 2022 

 
 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
TO:  Mayor Jeff A. Sode and Village Board 
 
FROM: Alise Coulter, Executive Administrative Assistant 
 
ITEM: Street Closure Request for Sailors 

 
 
Background. The Special Event Policy requires Village Board authorization prior to the closure 
of arterial or collector roadways. The Wauconda Moose Lodge submitted an application to hold a 
special event which would require closing a portion of South Maple Avenue on Monday, May 30, 
2022 from 1:00 PM to 5:00 PM.  
 
Analysis. The proposed special event will have music and bags tournament. Alcohol is not 
permitted outside of their pre-existing special outdoor service area. Due to safety concerns and 
overtime consideration, the Special Event Committee is recommending that the closure begin at 
8:00 AM before the Memorial Day Parade and remain closed through 5:00 PM. The application 
packet from the Wauconda Moose Lodge is attached. 









Regular Village Board Meeting 
May 17, 2022 

 
 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
TO:  Mayor Jeff A. Sode and Village Board 
 
FROM: Alise Coulter, Executive Administrative Assistant 
 
ITEM: Street Closure Request for National Night Out (NNO) Event 

 
 
Background. Every year on the first Tuesday in August, the Wauconda Police Department hosts 
National Night Out (NNO).  This event focuses on promoting safety for all Wauconda residents, 
preventing crime, participation in local anti-crime programs, as well as strengthening 
neighborhood spirit and community policing partnerships.  Partners of our NNO include the 
Village of Wauconda Public Works, the Wauconda Fire District, Advocate Good Shepherd, 
Wauconda Township, and many more.    
 
Analysis. Prior to 2021, this event was held at the Wauconda Park District; however, in an effort 
to increase community and local business participation, the event was moved to downtown Main 
Street. Staff believes this central and more visible location attracted additional community 
members and allowed for Main Street businesses to participate without disrupting their 
operations.  
 
Recommendation. NNO will be take place from 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. on Tuesday, August 2, 
2022 and would require the closure of Main Street from Route 176 to Bangs Street.  Staff is 
recommending the Village Board approve the closure of Main Street from 4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. 
in order to allow for setup and cleanup time. 
 
 



Regular Village Board Meeting 
May 17, 2022 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
TO:   Mayor Sode and Village Board 
 
FROM:  Jacob Mann, Superintendent of Operations 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Consideration and Approval of the Proposal from Terex Utilities Inc 

for Terex Hi-Ranger Optima TC55 Through the Sourcewell Joint 
Purchasing Contract 

 

 
 
Background:  Included in the FY2022/23 approved budget is $202,392 for the purchase of one 
(1) replacement boom bucket truck.  This purchase replaces truck #28, a 1998 Freightliner Truck 
assigned to the Streets section.  This vehicle helps perform many tasks such as tree trimming and 
removal, banner installation, decorations on Main St, building repairs, street lighting repairs and 
maintenance. Truck #28 will be sold at auction later as the lead time for this truck is 18-24 months. 
 
Due to the volatility in the auto/truck market for a variety of factors; such as, COVID-19 related 
issues, supply chain issues and raw material availability. The replacement of this vehicle is being 
accomplished through two purchase agreements; one for the cab & chassis ($83,299.00) and one 
for aerial boom and bucket equipment ($160,373).  The net cost of both purchases at this time is 
$243,672.00. With the unstable lead times, we need to get these orders processed and anticipate 
additional price increases. 
 
This request is related to the aerial boom and body work to be installed on the 2024 HV607 
Chassis. 
 
Analysis:  Staff researched suitable sources for the procurement of this vehicle and found the 
Sourcewell Joint Purchasing Contract offers the boom and bucket body that can be outfitted on a 
HV607 International flatbed chassis.  Sourcewell offers a multitude of cooperatively contracted 
products, equipment and service opportunities to education and government entities throughout 
the nation. 
 
Terex Utilities Inc, was awarded the Sourcewell Contract for this aerial boom and body equipment 
through its competitive bidding process.  In accordance with the Sourcewell Contract #110421-
TER Reference QU1721, Terex Utilities has quoted the new aerial boom and body work for 
$160,373.00 through the Sourcewell Contract.   
 
Recommendation:  Approval of the purchase of a new Terex Hi-Ranger Optima TC55 2024 Terex 
Utilities Inc through the Sourcewell joint purchasing program in accordance with the proposal 
provided by Terex Utilities Inc for a total price of $160,373.00 and authorize staff to execute the 
necessary contracts. 





























































Regular Village Board Meeting 
May 17, 2022 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
TO:   Mayor Sode and Village Board 
 
FROM:  Jacob Mann, Superintendent of Operations 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Consideration to Approve the Proposal from Rush Truck Center for 

2024 Flatbed Chassis Through the State of Illinois (CMS) Joint 
Bidding Contract 

 

 
 
Background.  Included in the FY2022/23 approved budget is $202,392 for the purchase of one 
(1) replacement boom bucket truck.  This purchase replaces truck #28, a 1998 Freightliner Truck 
assigned to the streets section.  This vehicle helps perform many tasks such as tree trimming and 
removal, banner installation, decorations on Main St, building repairs, street lighting repairs and 
maintenance. Truck #28 will be sold at auction later as the lead time for this truck is 18-24 months. 
 
Due to the volatility in the auto/truck market for a variety of factors; such as, COVID-19 related 
issues, supply chain issues and raw material availability. The replacement of this vehicle is being 
accomplished through two purchase agreements; one for the flatbed chassis ($83,299.00) and one 
for aerial boom and bucket equipment ($160,373).  The net cost of both purchases is $243,672.00. 
With the unstable lead times, we need to get these orders processed and anticipate additional price 
increases. 
 
This request is related to the flatbed chassis purchase.  A second agenda item will be presented for 
the aerial boom and bucket equipment through a separate vendor.  
 
Analysis.  Staff researched suitable sources for the procurement of this vehicle and found the State 
of Illinois (CMS) Joint Bidding Contract offers a 2024 flatbed chassis.  CMS offers a multitude of 
cooperatively contracted products, equipment and service opportunities to education and 
government entities throughout the State of Illinois. 
 
Rush Truck Center was awarded the State Bid Contract for this truck through its competitive 
bidding process.  In accordance with the State Bid Contract #19416CMS-BOSS4-P-8607, Rush 
Truck Center has quoted the new flatbed chassis for $83,299.00 through the State Bid Contract.   
 
Recommendation.  Approval of the purchase of a new 2024 International flatbed chassis truck 
from Rush Truck Center through the State of Illinois (CMS) joint purchasing program in 
accordance with the proposal provided by Rush Truck Center for a total price of $83,299.00 and 
authorize staff to execute the necessary contracts. 
 
 















Regular Village Board Meeting 
May 17, 2022 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
TO:   Mayor Sode and Village Board 
 
FROM:  Mike Reynolds, Interim Director of Public Works 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Consideration to Approve the Proposal from Rush Truck Center for 

the Purchase a 2024 International 5-Ton Dump Truck Snow Plow 
through the State of Illinois (CMS) Joint Bidding Contract 

 

 
 
Background.  Included in the FY2022/23 approved budget is $209,500 for the purchase of one 
(1) replacement 5-ton dump truck with wing plow and related snow & ice control equipment.  This 
purchase replaces truck #9, a 1996 International 5-ton dump truck assigned to the Streets section 
and was used for forestry and snow & ice control operations.  Truck #9 will be sold at auction at a 
later date.  Expected arrival date of the new wing plow truck is winter 2023.   
 
Analysis.  Staff researched suitable sources for the procurement of this vehicle and found the State 
of Illinois (CMS) Joint Bidding Contract offers a 2024 Cab & Chassis.  CMS offers a multitude of 
cooperatively contracted products, equipment and service opportunities to education and 
government entities throughout the State of Illinois.  Rush Truck Center was awarded the State 
Bid Contract for this truck through its competitive bidding process.  In accordance with the State 
Bid Contract #19-416CMS-BOSS4-P-8607, Rush Truck Center has quoted a price of $215,172.00 
through the State Bid Contract.  Rush Truck Center will equip the truck with Monroe brand snow 
and ice removal material.  Monroe brand equipment keeps the snow and ice removal fleet 
consistent.  
 
Due to the volatility in the auto/truck market for a variety of factors; such as, COVID-19 related 
issues, supply chain issues and raw material availability, the replacement of this vehicle cost has 
gone up since budgetary prices were obtained in February 2022.  Recent cost increases on both the 
chassis and snow removal equipment have increased costs over the budgeted amount. With the 
unstable lead times, we need to get these orders processed and anticipate additional price increases. 
  
 
Recommendation.  Approval of the purchase of a new 2024 International Cab & Chassis Truck 
outfitted with Monroe snow and ice removal equipment from Rush Truck Center through the State 
of Illinois (CMS) joint purchasing program in accordance with the proposal provided by Rush 
Truck Center for a total price of $215,172.00 and authorize staff to execute the necessary contracts. 
 
 
 



















Regular Village Board Meeting 
May 17, 2022 

1 | P a g e  

 
 
 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
TO:   Mayor Sode and Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Gregory J Anderson, AICP, MBA 
 
AGENDA ITEM: FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT - 314 West Liberty Street (IL-176)   

 
 
Background.   
Grant #21-06, Yamon Properties LLC is a small investment group that has chosen the Village of 
Wauconda for their future investments into the redevelopment of several properties along West 
Liberty Street (IL-176). The first of their properties is the 314 W. Liberty Street property consisting 
of a two-unit commercial property, now home of Hair Solutions (314) and Burrito Express (316). 
 
Analysis.  
Yamon Properties LLC has invested $193,570.98 for the property know as 314 - 316 West Liberty 
Street as demonstrated in the attached detail sheets pulled from their application for “tax increment 
financing” funding. The Village staff has reviewed the TIF application and determined that this 
redevelopment project has more eligibility under the newly created Façade Improvement Program 
(FIP) than funding from the TIF District. 
 
The list of eligible elements are found on page 3 of 7 in the Façade Improvement Guidelines within 
the attached document. The List of Improvements and the eligible items were as follows: Demo 
Mansard Roof, Exterior Renovations, New Parking Lot, Exterior Steel Doors, Store Front Double 
Doors, and Exterior Brick Work for a total reimbursement, based upon percentages, of $20,369.01. 
 
Due to COVID, transition from one Village Administrator to another and TIF District eligibility, 
this application was placed on hold and requires a waiver of the policy and procedure adopted by 
the Village; whereas “Excluded improvement elements or activities are as follows: construction 
commenced prior to façade improvement approval date”. 
 
Village Staff Recommendation. 
The Village Administrative staff supports the waiver due to the above conditions cited and, 
therefore, makes a formal recommendation to issue a reimbursement to Yamon Properties LLC 
for their redevelopment plans for 314 & 316 West Liberty Street in the amount not to exceed 
$20,369.01 (See attached Summary Chart). 
 
Economic Development Commission Recommendation. 
Upon presentation by Village Administrative staff the Commission has forwarded a favorable 
recommendation for approval of a waiver of policy to allow for the applicant, Yamon Properties 



LLC, to utilize Façade Improvement Grant monies and issue a reimbursement in an amount not to 
exceed $20,369.01 per the attached Summary Chart and supporting documentation. Upon a voice 
vote by those members present, all in favor, (8-0-1 absent), motion carried. 
 
Respectfully Submitted & Recorded by: 
 
 
 
 
 
Gregory J Anderson, AICP, MBA 
Director of Community Development 
Vice Chairman of EDC 
 
Date: May 11th 2022 
 
  



BEFORE 

 
 

AFTER (May 6th 2022) 

 
  



 

Total Expenses Eligible For: Total Expenses
New Roof 42,968.00$           0% -$                        

Demo Mansard Roof 5,800.00$             25% 1,450.00$             
Exterior Renovations 30,607.00$           25% 7,651.75$             

New Parking Lot 58,900.00$           15% 8,835.00$             

2 HVAC Units 30,000.00$           0% -$                        

Exterior Steel Doors 3,900.00$             25% 975.00$                 

Tree Removal 250.00$                 0% -$                        

Store Fornt Double Doors 4,579.03$             25% 1,144.76$             

Exterior Brick Work 1,250.00$             25% 312.50$                 

Permits 511.00$                 0% -$                        
Sentry Security 125.00$                 0% -$                        

Fire Alarm & Inspection 225.00$                 0% -$                        

Fire Alarm System 14,375.00$           0% -$                        

Fire Alarm Monitoring Service -$                        
And Inspection -$                        

Test Maintenance Report 80.95$                   0% -$                        

Total 193,570.98$         20,369.01$           

SUMMARY OF EXPENSES FOR REIMBURSEMENT



Regular Village Board Meeting 
May 17, 2022 

 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
TO:  Mayor Jeff A. Sode and Village Board 
 
FROM: Alise Coulter, Executive Administrative Assistant 
 
ITEM: Approval of a Contract with Priority One Janitorial Services 

 
 
Background. In 2021, Village staff decided not to renew the janitorial contract with Extreme 
Maintenance. The service was not meeting the standards set forth in the contract, therefore, a letter 
of intent to terminate the contract was sent to Extreme Maintenance. According to the contract, 
Extreme Maintenance would continue to provide services for 30 days from receipt of the letter; 
however, upon receipt they informed staff that they would not be returning. In anticipation that 
this situation could happen, Chief Wermes approached Gloria Maids, the current janitorial vendor 
for the Police Department, to fill in until the end of the fiscal year.  
 
Analysis. Staff contacted LACOSTA Facility Support Services, Happy Maids, Priority One 
Janitorial Services, All-Brite Janitorial Service and AA Cleaning Service, Inc. Aside from Gloria 
Maids, Priority One Janitorial Services was the only company that submitted a quote.  
 
Priority One Janitorial Services has over 35 years of experience in the commercial, professional, 
and manufacturing janitorial industries. All cleaning personnel are professionally trained and will 
be equipped with picture ID badges when onsite. A Field Supervisor will conduct quality control 
inspections to ensure quality service.  
 
Recommendation. Staff is recommending that the Board approve a one-year contract with Priority 
One Janitorial Services for an amount not-to-exceed $21,480.00 for the janitorial services at 
Village Hall, Community Development, Public Works and the Citizen’s Activity Center. 



  

  

  

  

Presents  

  
  
  

A Maintenance Service Proposal  

  

For  

  

VILLAGE OF WAUCONDA 
  

  

March 8, 2022 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   
   
   
  
  
  
  
  

Ms. Alise Homola                                                                         March 8, 2022 
Village of Wauconda 
101 N. Main Street  
Wauconda, Illinois 60084 
 
  
   
   
  
Dear Ms. Alise Homola:    
  
Thank you for allowing Priority One Janitorial Services the opportunity to provide 
you with first class janitorial services.   
  
I have assembled a complete detailed proposal for your review, along with a list 
of specialty services Priority One Janitorial Services has to offer.   
  
I am confident that this proposal will assist you in selecting the right company for 
your cleaning needs and we would be honored in partnering with you.   
  
Sincerely,  
  
Greg M. Hitzeman  
Vice President of Sales   
PRIORITY ONE JANITORIAL SERVICES  
  

 



INTRODUCING PRIORITY ONE JANITORIAL SERVICES  
  

OUR STORY  
  
Priority One Janitorial Services has over 35 years of successful experience in the 
commercial, professional, and manufacturing janitorial industries. We have been providing 
exceptional janitorial services to the following counties of Illinois; Cook, DuPage, Kane, Lake, 
McHenry, and Will.  
  

PERSONAL TOUCH  
  
Priority One Janitorial Services has achieved a leadership role within the janitorial service 
industry by providing a personal service to our clients and their facilities. We provide 
consistent first-class services.   

  
SERVICE PLANS  

  
We offer flexible cleaning service schedules and provide janitorial services to many 
business facilities. Organizations such as banks, manufacturing plants, corporate 
headquarters, commercial offices, professional offices, libraries, health clubs, medical 
facilities, and schools. We also provide a variety of specialty services that are obtained upon 
request for an even more customized service.  
  

PERSONNEL  
  
All cleaning personnel are professionally trained through comprehensive 
seminars and skillful hands-on training. All personnel are equipped with picture ID badges and 
professional attire. Our cleaning personnel are provided with all new equipment, 
supplies and cleaning products to complete the sanitation process of all our customer 
facilities.   
  

RELIABLE QUALITY CONTROL  
  
All client’s facilities are assigned a senior executive, account executive and field supervisor to 
assure were providing you top quality service.   
  

LONG TERM RELATIONSHIPS  
  
Priority One Janitorial Services manages our customer relationships with an open line of 
communication. All communications received from our clients are professionally addressed the 
same day. We pride ourselves on rectifying all requests or concerns within a 24-hour period.  
 



 

 

 

 

MAINTENANCE SPECIFICATIONS FOR VILLAGE 

OF WAUCONDA 101 N. MAIN STREET, 

WAUCONDA, ILLINOIS 60084

A. MAIN LOBBIES, GENERAL AND PRIVATE

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

OFFICES, BOARDROOM, CONFERENCE 

W
ee

kl
y

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly

ROOMS, AND COPY ROOM

  1 . Empty all trash receptacles. 2X

  2 . Replace trash can liners (client provided). X

  3 . Replace trash can liners (Priority 1 Janitorial Services na

will provide and invoice per price agreement).

  4 . Dust and clean all table tops. 2X

  5 . Completely sanitize desk tops if unobstructed X

or when desk request card is present.

  6 . Completely low dust all horizontal surfaces to 2X

hand height including sills and ledges.

  7 . Completely high dust above hand height all X

horizontal surfaces including picture frames,

partition tops, shelves, and ledges.

  8 . Spot Clean lobby reception glass. 2X

  9 . Clean entire lobby glass doors - both sides. 2X

10 . Spot clean interior glass in doors and partitions. X

11 . Eliminate smudges and finger prints from light X

switches, push and kick plates.

12 . Completely vacuum fabric chairs. X

13 . Sanitize interior and exterior of all trash X

receptacles.

14 . Completely dust all horizontal blinds. X

15 . Vacuum and damp wipe all ceiling diffuser outlets. X

16 . Sanitize telephones. 2X

Thursday, November 18, 2021 Page 1 0f 6

W
ee

kl
y

D
ai

ly

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly



 

 

 

 

 

 

17 

.
Sanitize counter tops. 2X

18 

.
Sanitize drinking fountains. 2X

MAINTENANCE SPECIFICATIONS FOR 

VILLAGE OF WAUCONDA 101 N. MAIN 

STREET, WAUCONDA, ILLINOIS 60084

B. RESTROOMS

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

X General Office X Unisex
W

ee
kl

y

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly

X Public Locker Rooms

  1 . Sanitize all chrome components. 2X

  2 . Sanitize all restroom fixtures including urinals, 2X

toilet bowls, and sinks.

  3 . Sanitize all toilet seats. 2X

  4 . Clean glass mirrors. 2X

  5 . Sanitize all showers. na

  6 . Empty all trash receptacles. 2X

  7 . Replace trash can liners (client Provided). X

  8 . Replace trash can liners (Priority 1 Janitorial na

 will provide and invoice per price 

agreement).

  9 . Empty and sanitize all sanitary containers. 2X

10 . Dust tops of all lockers. na

11 . Sanitize all exterior of lockers. na

12 . Dust tops of partition stalls. X

13 . Eliminate smudges and fingerprints from partition X

stalls.

14 . Sanitize all partition stalls. X

15 . Sanitize partions adjacent to urinals. 2X

Thursday, November 18, 2021 Page 2 0f 6

W
ee

kl
y

D
ai

ly

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly



 

 

16 . Eliminate smudges and fingerprints from light X

switches, push and kick plates.

17 . Eliminate scattered splashes and spots from walls 2X

adjacent to towel dispensers and sinks.

18 . Vacuum and damp wipe all ceiling diffuser outlets. X

19 . Completely mop all tiled floor areas utilizing a 2X

sanitation disinfectant. Mops, buckets and

wringers will be appointed to restroom use only.

20 . Restore the following products within the 2X

designated dispensers; sanitary napkins, toilet

tissue, facial tissue, toilet seat covers, hand towels,

and hand soap (client provided).

21 . Restore the following products within the na

designated dispensers; sanitary napkins, toilet

tissue, facial tissue, toilet seat covers, hand towels,

and hand soap (Priority 1 Janitorial Services

will provide and invoice per price agreement).

22 . Completely dust all tables and chairs. na

MAINTENANCE SPECIFICATIONS FOR 

VILLAGE OF WAUCONDA 101 N. MAIN 

STREET, WAUCONDA, ILLINOIS 60084

C. DINING AREAS

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

X Coffee Station Vending

W
ee

kl
y

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly

X Lunchroom Plant Lunchroom

  1 . Sanitize tables and chairs. 2X

  2 . Sanitize countertops and sink. 2X

  3 . Clean coffee pots.  Public works only. X

  4 . Completely low dust all horizontal surfaces to 2X

hand height including sills and ledges.

  5 . Completely high dust above hand height all X

horizontal surfaces including picture frames, 

partition tops, shelves, and ledges.

Thursday, November 18, 2021 Page 3 0f 6

W
ee

kl
y

D
ai

ly

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly



 

 

  6 . Eliminate smudges and fingerprints from light X

switches, push and kick plates.

  7 . Sanitize interior and exterior of all trash X

receptacles.

  8 . Empty all trash receptacles. 2X

  9 . Replace trash can liners (client provided). X

10 . Replace trash can liners (Priority 1 Janitorial Services na

Company will provide and invoice per price

 agreement).

11 . Sanitize refrigerator door. 2X

12 . Sanitize interior and exterior of microwave. 2X

13 . Spot clean interior partition glass within partitions na

and doors.

14 . Sanitize interior of refrigerator. na

D . FLOOR MAINTENANCE

MAINTENANCE SPECIFICATIONS FOR VILLAGE 

OF WAUCONDA 101 N. MAIN STREET, 

WAUCONDA, ILLINOIS 60084

Terrazzo X Quarry Mondo
A

s R
eq

ui
re

d

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

X Ceramic Marble X VCT

W
ee

kl
y

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly

Epoxy Cement

  1 . Completely dust mop or sweep all floor areas. 2X

  2 . Completely damp mop all floor areas. 2X

  3 . Spray buff all tiled floors utilizing a high speed na

burnisher machine where applicable.

  4 . Machine strip and refinish all tiled floors where na

applicable.

  5 . Machine strip and refinish all tiled floors for an na

additional cost of $   per occurrence.

Thursday, November 18, 2021 Page 4 0f 6

W
ee

kl
y

D
ai

ly

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly



 
 
 

 

E. CARPET MAINTENANCE

MAINTENANCE SPECIFICATIONS FOR 

VILLAGE OF WAUCONDA 101 N. MAIN 

STREET, WAUCONDA, ILLINOIS 60084

E. CARPET MAINTENANCE

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

W
ee

kl
yE. CARPET MAINTENANCE

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly

  1 . Completely Vacuum open areas including track off 2X

mats.

  2 . Detail vacuum all areas. X

  3 . Inspect for carpet spots throughout the facility 2X

and remove if possible.

  4 . Pre-spot and steam extract all carpeted areas. na

  5 . Pre-spot and steam extract all carpeted areas for na

an additional cost of $ per occurrence.

W
ee

kl
y

D
ai

ly

E. CARPET MAINTENANCE

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly

F. LIGHT FIXTURE MAINTENANCEF. LIGHT FIXTURE MAINTENANCE
A

s R
eq

ui
re

d

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

F. LIGHT FIXTURE MAINTENANCE
A

s R
eq

ui
re

d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly

W
ee

kl
y

  1 . Completely clean light fixtures. na

  2 . Re-lamp light fixtures when tubes or bulbs have na

expired.

F. LIGHT FIXTURE MAINTENANCE

D
ai

ly

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly

W
ee

kl
y

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

G. EXTERIOR WINDOWS AND INTERIOR

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly

W
ee

kl
yPARTITION GLASS

  1 . Completely wash interior and exterior windows. na

  2 . Completely wash interior and exterior windows na

for an additional cost of $ per occurrence.

  3 . Spot clean interior partition glass. X

  4 . Completely wash interior partition glass. na

Thursday, November 18, 2021 Page 5 of 6

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly

W
ee

kl
y

D
ai

ly



 

  5 . Completely wash interior partition glass for an na

additional cost of $ per occurrence.

H. STAIRWELLS AND ELEVATOR CABS

MAINTENANCE SPECIFICATIONS FOR 

VILLAGE OF WAUCONDA 101 N. MAIN 

STREET, WAUCONDA, ILLINOIS 60084

X Common Area Stairwells

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

X  Elevator

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly

W
ee

kl
y

Service Elevator 

  1 . Clean and sanitize elevator cab. 2X

  2 . Vacuum carpeted stairwell. 2X

  3 . Sweep stairwell. 2X

  4 . Damp mop stairwell. 1X

  5 . Completely sanitize stairwell handrails. 1X

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly

W
ee

kl
y

D
ai

ly

I. ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

I. ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
lyI. ADDITIONAL SERVICES

W
ee

kl
y

  1 . Maintain clean and organized janitor closets 2X

throughout the facility.

Thursday, November 18, 2021 Page 6 of 6

A
s R

eq
ui

re
d

A
nn

ua
l

Se
m

i-A
nn

ua
l

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

M
on

th
ly

D
ai

ly

I. ADDITIONAL SERVICES

W
ee

kl
y



PROPOSAL FOR VILLAGE OF WAUCONDA 
 101 N. MAIN STREET, WAUCONDA, ILLINOIS 60084 

 

 March 8, 2022  
  

We are pleased to have the opportunity of submitting our   
quotation as follows:    

 
Provide two days per week service on Wednesdays and 
Fridays to the following facilities: Village Hall, Community 
Development, CAC, and Public Works. CAC first floor and 
Water Plant will receive weekly service on Fridays. 
Quotation is based on the enclosed specifications. 

                
TOTAL MONTHLY QUOTATION: $1790.00 

 
 
 

 

        PRIORITY ONE JANITORIAL SERVICES PERSONNEL 

  
• All cleaning personnel are equipped with picture 
identification card and professional attire.  

  
• Our staff is trained to abide by their work schedules and are 
forbidden to open drawers, operate any phones or rearrange 
desktops. Personnel will behave in a decorum revealing best 
security practices, nobility, and the greatest concern for 
our customer’s interest.  

 
 
 

 



 

    
PRIORITY ONE JANITORIAL SERVICES APPROACH TO 

RECTIFYING REQUESTS AND CONCERNS  
  
Priority One Janitorial Services manages our customer relationships 
with an open line of communication. Customers are never directed to 
a customer service department. All concerns or requests will be 
addressed by the Vice President or Account Executive. We pride 
ourselves on rectifying all requests or concerns within a 24-hour 
period.   
  
For the program to be successful it is essential and important to have 
our executive staff make physical monthly inspections of your facility 
and the Field Supervisor make weekly inspections. Effective 
communications will result in a more organized and productive 
cleaning program.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



START-UP PROGRAM 

  
1. Confirm start date.   
  
2. Obtain signature on contract.   

  
3. Proof of Insurance.   

  
4. Assign an Account Representative.   

  
5. Contact client for visits.   

  
6. Site inspection with:   

a. Vice President, Account Executive, Field Supervisor   
b. Area Supervisor and Night Supervisor   

  
7. Review cleaning specifications, security procedures, and 
cleaning time requirements. 

 
8. Review personnel requirements.   

 

9. Review cleaning supplies and new equipment.  
 

10.  Follow up visit by visit by President and Account Executive after 
first night of service.  

 

11.  On first week of service, frequent follow-ups to confirm quality. 
Thereafter, reoccurring physical inspections will occur 
by President and Account Executive throughout the terms of the 
contract.  

 



Specialty Services  
  

• Post Construction cleaning  
  

• Ultrasonic blind cleaning  
  

• Parking lot cleaning  
  

• Tiled floor refinishing  
  

• Restroom sanitation programs  
  

• Wall washing  
  

• Pressure washing programs  
  

• Warehouse ceiling cleaning  
  

• Fabric furniture cleaning  
  

• Green cleaning programs  
  

• Carpet cleaning programs  
  

• Commercial and industrial equipment cleaning  
  

• 24-hour emergency cleaning services  
  

• Concrete floor maintenance and refinishing  
  

• Acoustical ceiling tile cleaning  
  

• Window and skylight cleaning  
 

 
 



Service Contract Agreement   
  

This service contract agreement will be made between the following two 
parties. Priority 1 Janitorial Services & Maintenance, LLC hereinafter 
known as “Priority 1” and Village of Wauconda hereinafter known as 
“Customer” on March 8, 2022. Priority 1 with its principal place of business 
located at 25679 Hillview Ct, Mundelein, IL  60060, and Customer with its 
principal place of business located at 101 N. Main Street, Wauconda, 
Illinois 60084. 
  
Whereas Customer wishes to utilize the services of Priority 1 and Priority   
 1 wishes to provide service for Customer, the parties mutually agree as 
follows.  

  
1. Priority 1 will provide all the necessary cleaning personnel and field 
supervision necessary in adequate quantity to clean and maintain Customer’s 
facility located at facility address in accordance with the enclosed 
specifications.   

  
2. Priority 1 will provide evidence of workers compensation and public 
liability insurance upon request by Customer.  

  
3. The monthly quotation for services rendered, based on the enclosed 
specifications, would be One Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety Dollars 
($1,790.00) per month for a twelve (12) month period. This service contract 
maybe terminated by either party by giving written thirty (30) day notice of 
cancellation by certified mail.   

  
4. The contract price is on performing cleaning services based on enclosed 
specifications and under normal occupancy conditions. Anytime the 
facility under-goes periods of renovation, construction, or other unusual 
events which requires additional time for cleaning, Priority 1 may require 
supplementary compensation for the additional work. Additional charges will 
be mutually agreed to by Customer and Priority 1.   

  
 



5. All invoicing will be itemized according to monthly work provided or based 
on requested special services outside the service contract. Invoicing will be 
issued the 1st of each month and payable at the end of the month services are 
rendered. After fifteen (15) days, unpaid amounts shall accrue interest at the 
rate of 1.75 per month. If Priority 1 has referred to an attorney or agency for 
collection, costs of collection and reasonable attorney’s fees shall be 
recoverable by Priority 1.   

  
6. Priority 1 will accommodate payment of invoicing and other amounts due 
in the form of cash or check.   

  
7. Priority 1 shall make reasonable and prompt restitution by replacement or 
repairs, subject to the approval of Customer, covering any damage for which 
Priority 1 is responsible.   

  
8. Priority 1 shall pay all payroll taxes, state taxes, and any other taxes or 
items that may be levied against its payroll either by city, state, or federal 
agencies.   

  
9. Customer agrees during the period of the service contract agreement or for 
a period of twenty-four (24) months after the termination of this 
agreement, the Customer agrees not to hire, contract, or employ for services 
any person employed by Priority 1.  

  
10.   Customer agrees to pay fair and reasonable costs, expenses, and attorney 
fees incurred by Priority 1 in the enforcement of this contract agreement. 
Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises and benefits to be 
derived by the parties they mutually agree to the terms and conditions as 
outlined above in this contract.   

  
11.   This service agreement constitutes the entire service agreement between 
both parties.     

  
12.   IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this service agreement 
contract effective as of the signed and dated document below.   
  
  
  



  

                                                
 

  
 

      Priority 1 Janitorial Services & Maintenance, LLC   
  
By: ___________________________  
  
  
Name: ________________________  
  
  
Title: _________________________  
  
  
Date: _________________________  
  
  
  
Village of Wauconda 
  
By: ___________________________   
  
  
Name: ________________________  
  
  
Title: __________________________   
  
  
Date: _________________________   

 


	Regular Village Board Meeting Agenda May 17, 2022
	7A.	Approval of the Bills for Payment from April 23, 2022 to May 6, 2022 in the Amount of $934,757.52
	7B.	Approval of the Minutes of the May 3, 2022 Regular Village Board Meeting
	7C.	Approval of the Request from Wauconda Moose Lodge 1969 for the Closure of South Maple from 8:00 AM until 5:00 PM on Monday, May 30
	7D.	Approval of the Request from Chief Wermes for the Closure of Main Street from 176 to Bangs Street for the 2022 National Night Out Event on August 2, from 4:00 PM to 9:00 PM
	9A.	Consideration and Approval of the Purchase of a Terex Hi-Ranger Optima TC55 2024 from Terex Utilities, Inc. through the Sourcewell Joint Purchasing Contract
	9B.	Consideration and Approval of the Purchase of a 2024 Flatbed Chassis from Rush Truck Center through the State of Illinois (CMS) Joint Bidding Contract
	9C.	Consideration and Approval of the Purchase of a 2024 International 5-Ton Dump Truck Snow Plow from Rush Truck Center through the State of Illinois (CMS) Joint Bidding Contract
	9D.	Consideration and Approval of a Disbursement to Yamon Properties, LLC in the amount of $20,369.01 for Façade Improvements at 314 & 316 West Liberty Street
	9E.	Consideration and Approval of a Contract with Priority One Janitorial Services for the Janitorial Services at Village Hall, Community Development, Public Works and the Citizen’s Activity Center in an amount not-to-exceed $21,480.00

